
 
  
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

December 8, 2015 
THE REGULAR MEETING CONVENES AT 2:00 P.M.  

IN THE GENERAL DISTRICT COURTROOM  
AT THE COURTHOUSE IN LOVINGSTON 

 
I. Call to Order 

A. Moment of Silence 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Consent Agenda 

A. Resolution – R2015-95  Minutes for Approval 
B. Resolution – R2015-96  COR Refunds 
C. Resolution – R2015-97  FY16 Budget Amendment 
                         

III. Public Comments and Presentations 
A. Public Comments 
B. Presentation – Potential Economic Effect of the ACP, Key-Log Economics, LLC  
C. Presentation – JAUNT Annual Report & 5-Year Financial Plan  
D. Presentation -  Community Criminal Justice Board- Crime/Incarceration Trends 
E. VDOT Report 

1. Beautification Project, Intersection of US Business 29 and Route 56 East. 
 

IV. New Business/ Unfinished Business (As May Be Presented) 
 

V. Reports, Appointments, Directives, and Correspondence 
A. Reports 

1. County Administrator’s Report 
2.   Board Reports 

B. Appointments   
C. Correspondence 

1.   NCHS Senior FFA, Request for Rings-Forestry Team 
2.   Planning Commission, Request for Extension – “Bed & Breakfast and “Transient 

   Lodging Uses” 
3. Thomas Guthrie – Nuisance Dog Ordinance 

D. Directives 
 

VI. Recess and Reconvene Until 7:00 PM for the Evening Session 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
 

EVENING SESSION 
7:00 P.M. – NELSON COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Public Comments 
 

III. Public Hearings 
 

A. Public Hearing – Special Use Permit #2015-15 “Dwelling”/Michael 
Tapager:  Application made pursuant to Zoning Ordinance, Section 8-1-10a to re-establish the use 
of a residential dwelling within the upper stories of an existing building in the Lovingston Historic 
District. The subject property is at 622 Front Street, is identified at Tax Map #58B-3-2 and is 
zoned Business B-1. 

 
B. Public Hearing – County of Nelson Grant Application DHCD/CDBG 

Funding:  The County of Nelson seeks citizen input on its proposed grant application to the 
Department of Housing and Community Development for Community Development Block Grant 
funding through its Community Economic Development grant program; specifically the Nelson 
County-Wild Wolf Infrastructure Project. The County proposes to utilize $250,000 in available 
funds for a Community Economic Development Project that will install approximately 2200 feet of 
HDPE sewer force main from the Aqua Virginia pump station on State Route 151 to 2461 
Rockfish Valley Hwy (Wild Wolf Brewing Company) ending with a coated manhole. Wild Wolf 
will then provide the connections and pump station from their property to the coated manhole. 

                  
 

IV. Other Business  (As May Be Presented) 
 

V. Adjourn and Continue Until 8:30 am December 15, 2015 for the Board of Supervisors 
Retreat – Veritas Winery in Afton, Virginia 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT #2015-15  
 
Pursuant to Volume 3A, Title 15.2, Counties, Cities and Towns, of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, and pursuant to §15.2-1427 and §15.2-2204 the County of Nelson, will hold a public 
hearing on Tuesday, December 8, 2015 at 7:00 PM or as soon as practical thereafter in the 
General District Courtroom of the Courthouse in Lovingston, Virginia.  The purpose of the public 
hearing is to solicit public input on the following: 
 

1. Special Use Permit #2015-15 –  “Dwelling”  /  Mr. Michael Tapager 
 
Consideration of a Special Use Permit application made pursuant to Zoning Ordinance §8-1-10a 
(“single family dwelling units, two family dwelling units, and multi-family dwelling units”). The 
applicant wishes to re-establish the traditional use of a residential dwelling within the upper stories 
of an existing building in the Lovingston Historic District. The subject property is located in 
Lovingston at 622 Front Street; Tax Map Parcel #58B-3-2 and is zoned Business (B-1). 
 
Copies of the application are available for public inspection in the Department of Planning & 
Zoning, 80 Front Street, and in the Office of the County Administrator, 84 Courthouse Square, 
Lovingston, VA, 22949, M-F, 9 am to 5 pm.  For more information call Planning & Zoning 
(434) 263-7090, or toll free at 888-662-9400, selections 4 and 1.  
 
 

BY AUTHORITY OF NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
To: Chair and Members, Nelson County Board of Supervisors 

From: Tim Padalino | Planning & Zoning Director 

Date: December 3, 2015 

Subject: Public Hearing for Special Use Permit #2015-15  (“Dwelling” / Tapager) 

   

Summary of Application(s) 
Site Address /  
Location: 

622 Front Street / Lovingston / East District 

Tax Parcel(s): #58B-3-2 
Parcel Size: 0.0 acres (per Nelson County “ProVal” records) 
Zoning: Business (B-1) 
Applicants: Mr. Michael Tapager – property owner 
Request: Approval of Special Use Permit #2015-15 pursuant to Zoning Ordinance §8-1-10a 

 Completed Applications Received On: October 27th, 2015 

 
On October 27th, the Department of Planning & Zoning received a Special Use Permit (SUP) application 
from Mr. Michael Tapager, applicant and property owner of the subject property. The application seeks 
County approval to utilize the subject property for a residential dwelling, which has been a traditional 
use at this subject property for many decades.  
 
Specifically, this SUP request is made pursuant to Zoning Ordinance Article 8 “Business District B-1” 
Section 1-10a “Uses – Permitted by Special Use Permit only: single family dwelling units, two family 
dwelling units, and multi-family dwelling units.”  
 
The applicant notes that, “[t]he intent of this application…is to regain the residential use that was lost 
after the two year period for a nonconforming use expired.” If SUP approval is granted by the County, 
the subject property could once again be used for multiple uses (permissible business use(s) on the 
ground floor and residential dwelling use(s) above), which is a traditional mixture of uses at that 
location in particular, and in many other historic districts in Nelson County and Virginia generally.  
 
Mr. Tapager also submitted a request for a waiver (pursuant to Z.O. §13-7-C) from the requirement 
(contained in Z.O. §12-3-4-c-1) to prepare and submit a Minor Site Plan with this SUP application. 
Pursuant to the authority and discretion provided in Z.O. §13-7-C, I have accepted this request for a 



Page 2 of 7 
 

waiver, and the SUP application is being presented to the Board of Supervisors without a Minor Site 
Plan. My acceptance of this request for a waiver is based on the following: 
 

- The detailed project narrative provided by the applicant, and the specific rationale and 
references to the Zoning Ordinance provisions and Comprehensive Plan content contained 
therein (see enclosed project narrative);  

- The atypical nature of the subject property, which is an existing historic structure with a 
building footprint that occupies almost the entire parcel; and  

- The fact that the applicant proposes no modifications to the exterior of the existing building or 
to the very small portion of open space in the rear of the property.  

 
 

Subject Property Location, Characteristics, and Comprehensive Plan Designation: 
 
The subject property is a historic urban property in the core of the Lovingston Historic District.  The 
street address is 622 Front Street, and is further identified as Tax Map Parcel #58B-3-2. Please note 
that this area is exempt from off-street parking requirements (per Z.O. §12-7-3). Please see maps on 
pages 4-7. 

 
Staff Evaluation and Recommendation(s): 
 

Per Zoning Ordinance Article 12, Section 3-2, the following criteria must be evaluated when 
reviewing all requests for Special Use Permits: 
 

A. The use shall not tend to change the character and established pattern of development of the 
area or community in which it proposes to locate; 
 

B. The use shall be in harmony with the uses permitted by right in the zoning district and shall 
not affect adversely the use of neighboring property; 
 

C. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public or private services such as 
streets, drainage facilities, fire protection and public or private water and sewer facilities; and 
 

D. The proposed use shall not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any feature 
determined to be of significant ecological, scenic or historic importance. 

 
The opinion of Staff is that the proposed project, as detailed in the application materials for SUP 
#2015-15, seems to be satisfactory relative to all four evaluation criteria. Specifically, my evaluation of 
the proposed project relative to each criterion is as follows:  
 

A. The proposed use is in keeping with the traditional mixture of uses in the Lovingston Historic 
District. The subject property was formerly used as a residential dwelling for many decades.  
 

B. The proposed use (dwelling) is within very close proximity to other dwellings in the 
Lovingston Historic District. It would not be unharmonious or adversely affect the use of 
neighboring properties.  

 

C. The proposed use is located in a building with water and sewer services provided by the 
Nelson County Service Authority.  



Page 3 of 7 
 

 

D. The proposed project would allow for the traditional reuse of one of the most centrally-located 
structures in the Lovingston Historic District.  

 
Therefore, with consideration of all of the above factors, the Planning & Zoning Director provided a 
recommendation of approval for Special Use Permit #2015-15 to the Planning Commission (PC).  
 
Planning Commission Evaluation and Recommendation(s): 
 
On November 18th the PC conducted a public hearing for this SUP request. No members of the public 
provided comments during the public hearing. Please note that, prior to the hearing, one adjoining 
property owner (Mr. Joe Madison – owner of 177 Main Street) provided the County with written 
correspondence in favor of this SUP request. Please refer to the enclosed letter of support from Mr. 
Madison for more information. 
 
After closing the public hearing, Commissioner Russell made a motion to recommend approval. 
Commissioner Goad seconded the motion, and the PC voted 3-0-1 (with Supervisor Saunders 
abstaining) to recommend to the BOS approval of SUP #2015-15.  
 
 
Conclusion: 
 

The Board of Supervisors will conduct a public hearing for SUP #2015-15 at the upcoming December 
8th BOS meeting. After conducting the public hearing, the Board may vote to approve, deny, or 
approve with conditions the requested SUP.  
 
Please note that the applicant, Mr. Tapager, has expressed an inability to attend the public hearing 
due to a conflict with his work schedule. Please refer to the enclosed correspondence from Mr. 
Tapager (dated December 2nd) for more information.  
 
In conclusion, please contact me with any questions, concerns, or requests for assistance leading up 
to the December 8th BOS public hearing for Special Use Permit #2015-15. Thank you very much for 
your time and attention to this application. 



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 



The subject property at 622 Front Street has since the institution of the Zoning Ordinance been a 
residence over a business space. The intent of this application for a Special Use Permit, is to regain the 
residential use that was lost after the two year period for a nonconforming use expired (Article 11-1-3 
Nelson County Zoning Ordinance). 

Unfortunately, I did not realize until after the time of expiration that I could extend the period another 
two years by written notice while the building was for sale. This application seeks to rectify that error.  

The upper two stories are designed as a single residence. I am merely trying to sell the building as 
financial considerations make it impossible for me to restore the building to the condition it deserves. 

Without the mixed-use, extensive reworking would probably be required in order for a business to 
utilize the upper two stories for a business use. Alternatively, if the zoning were changed to R-1, the 
presence of the shop front would probably exclude it from a residential loan. 

I also request that the requirement for a Site Plan Review be waived pursuant to Article 13-7-C of the 
Nelson County Zoning Ordinance. Restoring the residential use would not “require the improvements 
subject to [the site plan review]” (13-7-C-1) nor would it be against the “intent of the [site plan review 
process]” (13-7-C-2 and 3) as only restoration is envisioned. Any change in floor plan or footprint would 
be undertaken subject to County building codes or other regulations.  

As to 13-7-C-4, it could be argued that keeping the historic mixed use would help to further “the 
planning for and provision of adequate public facilities . . .” In this part of Lovingston, encouraging a 
residential component (which exists across Front Street as well as the law office/residence adjacent) 
alongside businesses helps foster a traditional atmosphere as envisioned in the Rural Small Town 
Development Model of the Comprehensive plan. (Nelson County Comprehensive Plan, Goals-Land Use 
Plan-Rural Small Town Development Model, p. iv).  

Further, in keeping with the stated goal of “preserv[ing] and protect[ing] the historic character and 
features of Nelson County”, restoring the mixed use would maintain the historic use of the building. 
(Nelson County Comprehensive Plan, p. 11) 

The Zoning Ordinance Article 13-7-C-5 lists five criteria allowing Site Plan review waiver.  Addressing 
each of these, the change (or re-establishment) of residential use would not: 

a. “occasion additional parking” (13-7-C-5-a) as Lovingston is exempt from minimum off street 
parking. (Zoning Ordinance, 12-7-3) 

b. create an intensification of use by adding ingress/egress to a public road (13-7-C-5-b) 
c.  add or alter ingress/egress  (13-7-C-5-c)  No additions are proposed. 
d. disturb land greater than 5000 square feet in area (13-7-C-5-d) No land disturbance is proposed 

and 
Subject property was one of the first in the town with plumbing (13-7-C-5-e) Verification is available. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.        

 



Nelson County Board of Supervisors 
Lovingston, VA 22949 
 
Dear Board Members, 
 
On next Tuesday’s agenda, there is a public hearing scheduled for a Special Use Permit to reinstate  
grandfathered residential use for 622 Front Street, which I own. 
 
Unfortunately, I won’t be able to attend the hearing, due to work considerations. The case supporting  
the SUP is laid out in detail in the application. If you have any questions or concerns prior to the hearing, 
please contact me, and I will be happy to address them. 
 
I hope that my absence won’t be seen as lack of interest on my part, and I look forward to hearing from 
you. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
Mike Tapager 
tapager@aol.com  
434-263-8133 
 
 

mailto:tapager@aol.com


November 10, 2015 
 
Dear Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors, 
 
In reference to Special Use Permit #2015-15  “Dwelling” / Mr. Michael Tapager 
 
As an adjoining property owner, I see no reason why this building cannot be used for residential as well 
as business purposes. Most of Lovingston is a mix of residential and business uses, and both must be 
supported for little Lovingston to possibly flourish but, at least survive. 
 
Please allow Special Use Permit #2015-15. 
 
Thank You for your consideration, 
Joe Madison 
Blue Star Music 
177 Main Street. Lovingston 
434-263-6746     434-996-1682 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING –DECEMBER 8, 2015 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (DHCD) 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) PROPOSAL 
NELSON COUNTY-WILD WOLF INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT 

 
The County of Nelson, will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, December 8, 2015 at 7:00 PM or 
as soon as practical thereafter in the General District Courtroom of the Courthouse in 
Lovingston, Virginia to solicit public input on the proposed Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) proposal to be submitted to the Virginia Department of Housing and Community 
Development for Nelson County-Wild Wolf Infrastructure Project. Residents of the project area 
are encouraged to attend.  
 
The Nelson County-Wild Wolf Infrastructure Project proposal will include the following 
activities: installation of approximately 2200 feet of HDPE sewer force main from the Aqua 
Virginia pump station on State Route 151 to 2461 Rockfish Valley Hwy (Wild Wolf Brewing 
Company) ending with a coated manhole. Wild Wolf will then provide the connections and pump 
station from their property to the coated manhole.  
 
The draft CDBG proposal will be presented for comment along with information on projected 
beneficiaries, including the number of to low-and-moderate income residents to benefit from the 
proposed project, and plans to minimize displacement. Citizens will also be given the 
opportunity to comment on the County of Nelson’s past use of CDBG funds. A fact sheet on the 
proposed project and the draft proposal is available at the County Administrator’s Office, 84 
Courthouse Square, Lovingston.  For additional information, contact the County Administrator’s 
Office at (434) 263-7000. 
 
Comments and grievances can be submitted in writing to the Nelson County Administrator’s 
Office at P.O. Box 336, Lovingston VA 22949 or by phone at (434) 263-7000, (434) 263-
6255(TDD), or by fax at (434) 263-7004 until 4:00 PM, Monday, December 7, 2015. 
 
If you plan to attend and have any special needs requirements, please call the number listed 
above. EOE. 
 

BY AUTHORITY OF NELSON COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



 

2015 Virginia CDBG Program Design  64 

APPENDIX B – CDBG CITIZEN 

PARTICIPATION 
 
For All Potential Local 
Government Applicants: 
It is important that community development 
projects carried out wholly or in part with 
Virginia Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funds involve extensive 
citizen participation during the proposal 
development process.  Local citizen 
participation should be encouraged 
throughout the process of developing a 
Community Improvement Grant (CIG) 
proposal.  In particular, participation by low- 
and moderate-income (LMI) residents of the 
project service area or a slum and blight area 
should be encouraged.  Participation is 
encouraged prior to submitting a Planning 
Grant proposal, but there are no firm 
requirements.   
 
The following steps, however, are 
required for each local government 
wishing to submit a Community 
Improvement Grant proposal, including 
both competitive round projects and 
projects being submitted under the open 
submission funds.   

PUBLIC HEARING 

REQUIREMENT 
At a minimum, at least two public hearings 
must be held during the CIG proposal 
development period.   
 The two hearings must, at a minimum, 

be held one week apart.   
 Advertisements for the two public 

hearings must be published separately.  
Applicants may not only publish one 
advertisement that includes information 
on both public hearings.   

 Both public hearings must be held 
within twelve months of the application 
deadline (defined by DHCD in 2015 as 
after March 31, 2014).  In the case of the 
same proposal being resubmitted from 
the prior competitive year, DHCD may 
waive the public hearing requirement on 
community development needs (first 
public hearing).   

 Files must be maintained containing 
documentary evidence that the hearings 
were held, to include at a minimum a list 
of attendees, minutes of the hearings, 
and notices (2 types) of the public 
hearings. 

 For regional proposals, each 
participating locality must hold two 
public hearings as described above.  

 Applicants must provide timely written 
answers to written comments and 
grievances, within 15 working days 
where practicable. 

 
Each hearing must be held after adequate 
notice as described below: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Advertisement must be made in a 
non-legal, locally-circulated newspaper 
with the largest general circulation at 
least seven days prior to each hearing.  
The public hearing notices must provide the 
address, phone number, TDD, and times for 
submitting comments and grievances to the 
applicant locality.  If publishing in a weekly 
paper, be sure the ads are published in such 
a manner as to comply with the 
requirements outlined here.   
 
 



 

2015 Virginia CDBG Program Design  65 

At least one other type of announcement 
must be done for each public hearing 
(examples below), at times and locations 
convenient to potential or actual 
beneficiaries, and with accommodation for 
the handicapped.   
 Advertisement through locally-received 

radio and/or television stations; 
 Distribution of flyers in LMI areas and 

in the proposed service area(s); 
 Announcements at local community 

organization meetings; or, 
 Announcements through local churches 

and community centers located in LMI 
and proposed project areas. 

FIRST PUBLIC HEARING 
The first hearing must be held early in the 
CIG proposal development process to 
identify the applicant's community 
development and housing needs, the range 
of eligible project types funded through the 
CDBG program and the amount of money 
available to the applicant, as well as the 
applicant's past performance (if applicable) 
in the CDBG program during the previous 
five years.  At a minimum citizens should be 
furnished with information concerning the 
amount of funds available (including 
program income) for proposed activities and 
the range of activities that may be 
undertaken, including the estimated amount 
to be used for activities that will benefit low- 
and moderate-income persons, the proposed 
CDBG activities likely to result in 
displacement,  and plans for minimizing 
displacement of persons as a result of the 
CDBG project, and plans to assist persons 
actually displaced by the project.   
 
Between the two hearings applicants must 
make available to the public a fact sheet or 
proposal summary that identifies the 
proposed activities and objectives for the 
project and identifies who will be affected 

by these activities.  Citizens must have an 
opportunity to comment on this document. 

SECOND PUBLIC HEARING 
A second hearing must be held for public 
review of and comment on the final draft of 
the CIG proposal.  A final draft or detailed 
fact sheet presenting the key activities and 
eligible benefits of the project must be 
available at the second public hearing, if not 
before. 

ADDITIONAL CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

REQUIREMENTS 
Local citizens should be provided with 
reasonable and timely access to local 
meetings, information, and records relating 
to the applicant locality's proposed and 
actual use of CDBG funds.  Meetings should 
be conducted according to the standards 
established for the public hearings cited 
below.  CDBG-related information and 
records must be made available to interested 
citizens with the availability of such items 
announced at least in the same manner as the 
public hearing advertisements.   
 
Technical assistance must be provided to 
groups representative of persons of low- and 
moderate-income that request such 
assistance in developing proposals for use of 
CDBG funds.  The level and type of 
assistance is determined by the applicant 
locality but must include at least 
consultation and written communication 
between a local contact person responsible 
for the CDBG proposal's development and 
interested groups.  The name, address, and 
telephone number of the contact person(s) 
must be made available upon request and 
announced at all public meetings held on the 
CDBG proposal.  
 
Where 5 percent or more of public hearing 
participants can be reasonably expected to 
be non-English speaking residents, 



 

2015 Virginia CDBG Program Design  66 

applicants must take measures to 
accommodate their needs.  Census data on 
the proposed project area and on the locality 
as a whole should be consulted to determine 
if this provision applies in a particular 
instance.  Meeting this provision requires, at 
a minimum, having printed material 
available in the non-English language(s) and 
retaining the services of an interpreter(s) for 
all CDBG-related meetings and public 
hearings. 
 
An applicant with a current CIG project to 
which activities are to be added, deleted, or 
substantially changed (that is, substantial 
changes made in terms of purpose, scope, 
location, or beneficiaries) must provide local 
citizens through a public hearing with an 
opportunity for comment on such changes, 
after the locality has informed citizens of the 
changes at least seven days prior to the 
hearing.   
 
Applicants must keep documentation of how 
they met the above requirement in their 

CDBG files for verification.  This 
documentation should include: 
 Documentation of the Public Hearing 

advertisements, 
 Documentation of the second method 

used to notify citizens of the public 
hearings, 

 List of attendees, 
 Minutes from the first hearing showing: 
 Available funds, 
 Available activities, 
 Past use of CDBG funds, 
 Minutes from the second hearing 

showing: 
 Description of proposed activities, 
 Plans to minimize displacement and 

assist displaced persons (if applicable), 
and 

 Any requested special accommodations. 
 
None of the foregoing may be construed to 
restrict the responsibility or authority of the 
local government applicant in the 
development and execution of its 
Community Improvement Grant project. 

  



 

2015 Virginia CDBG Program Design  67 

PUBLIC HEARING ADVERTISEMENTS 
These advertisements should be made in accordance with the Plan above. 
 

Model Advertisement – First Public Hearing 
(Locality) will hold a public hearing on (date) at (time) at (location) to solicit public input on 
local community development and housing needs in relation to Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funding for a project in our community. 
 
Information on the amount of funding available, the requirements on benefit to low- and 
moderate-income persons, eligible activities, and plans to minimize displacement and provide 
displacement assistance as necessary will be available.  Citizens will also be given the 
opportunity to comment on (locality’s) past use of CDBG funds.  All interested citizens are 
urged to attend.  For additional information, contact (local contact name and information). 
 
Comments and grievances can be submitted in writing to (locality) at (address) or by phone at 
(phone number and TDD) until (cut-off date).       
 
If you plan to attend and have any special needs requirements, please call the number listed 
above. 
 
 

Model Advertisement – Second Public Hearing 
(Locality) will hold a public hearing on (date) at (time) at (location) to solicit public input on the 
proposed Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) proposal to be submitted to the 
Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development for (project name).  Residents of 
the project area are encouraged to attend.  The (project name) proposal will include the following 
activities (list activities).   
 
The draft CDBG proposal will be presented for comment along with information on projected 
beneficiaries, including the number of low- and moderate-income residents to benefit from the 
proposed project, and plans to minimize displacement.  Citizens will also be given the 
opportunity to comment on (locality’s) past use of CDBG funds.  A fact sheet on the proposed 
project and the draft proposal is available at (location).  For additional information, contact (local 
contact name and information). 
 
Comments and grievances can be submitted in writing to (locality) at (address) or by phone at 
(phone number and TDD) until (cut-off date).       
 
If you plan to attend and have any special needs requirements, please call the number listed 
above. 
  



COUNTY OF NELSON PUBLIC HEARING #2 DECEMBER 8, 2015 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (DHCD)  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 
 2015 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT GRANT (CIG) FUNDS  

 

PROJECT FACT SHEET 
 

Proposed Project: Nelson County-Wild Wolf Infrastructure Project (2015 Community Economic 
Development Fund) 
 
The County proposes to utilize $250,000 in available funds for a Community Economic Development 
Project that will install approximately 2200 feet of HDPE sewer force main from the Aqua Virginia 
pump station on State Route 151 to 2461 Rockfish Valley Hwy (Wild Wolf Brewing Company) ending 
with a coated manhole. Wild Wolf will then provide the connections and pump station from their 
property to the coated manhole. The County is required to provide a 25% match of $62,500 which will 
also be used for this purpose. Funding for the local match will be provided by Wild Wolf Brewing 
Company. 
 
Program Income: No Program Income will be generated by the project. 
 
Availability of Funds and Range of Activities for Community Economic Development Fund 
Grant Projects:  
 
Up to $700,000 per project is available for projects supporting economic development activities; 
particularly those creating employment opportunities for low-and moderate–income persons. 
Assistance may include off-site improvements such as water & sewer lines, roads, and drainage. 
 
Benefit to Low-to-Moderate Income (LMI) Persons: 
 
The National Objective to be achieved through the funding is job retention and creation. At least 51 
percent of the permanent, full time jobs (including permanent, full time equivalent jobs) will be held by 
or made available to LMI persons. It is anticipated that use of $250,000 of these grant funds will enable 
the retention of forty-six (46) jobs and will enable the creation of a minimum of five (5) new jobs in 
2016 of which 51 % or 26 jobs will be held by or made available to LMI persons. Further expansion of 
the business is anticipated to occur over the next few years. 
 
Displacement: 
 
There will be no displacement of citizens during or because of the project. 
 
Comments:  
 
Citizens may provide comments on this document via email to abirkner@nelsoncounty.org; fax: (434) 
263-7004, or in person at the public hearing to be conducted on December 8th at 7:00 PM, General 
District Courtroom, Courthouse in Lovingston; 84 Courthouse Square. 
 
 



DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT (DHCD)  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

 2015 COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT GRANT (CIG) FUNDS  
Community Economic Development (CED) Fund Program  

(Nelson County-Wild Wolf Infrastructure Project)   
 

CED Program Purpose: 
 
The Community Economic Development Fund (CED) is designed to support economic development activities, 
particularly those creating employment opportunities for low- and moderate-income persons, in CDBG-eligible 
localities. Up to $700,000 will be available per project. Proposals will be received on an open basis from 
January 1, 2015 through September 30, 2015. Assistance is limited to projects involving employment creation 
by private, for-profit basic industries. Assistance may include off-site improvements such as water lines, sewer 
lines, roads, and drainage. 
 

o Wild Wolf Brewing Company proposes to install approximately 2,200 feet of HDPE sewer force 
main from the Aqua Virginia pump station on State Route 151 to 2461 Rockfish Valley Hwy 
(Wild Wolf Brewing Company) ending with a coated manhole. Wild Wolf will then provide the 
connections and pump station from their property to the coated manhole. 

 
Industry Commitment: 
 
All CED proposals must include an industry commitment letter. Such a letter serves as documentation of the 
industrial commitment which provides the basis for project eligibility. A commitment letter must include the 
following: The need for the improvements which the locality will implement using CDBG funding; the 
commitment of the business to locating or expanding in the locality; the type and amount of the private 
investments; the number of jobs (LMI and total) to be created or retained by category; the timing of the  
investments and hiring; a summary of the wages and benefits to be provided; the plans for job training, if 
applicable; and, the plans for use of a single point of contact for screening applicants, if applicable, such as the 
Virginia Employment Commission; the comprehension and acceptance that a formal industry agreement must 
be signed to secure the commitments. For Community Economic Development Fund projects, these industry 
Commitments must provide details on the accompanying benefits package. 
 

o Wild Wolf Brewing Company’s industry commitment is outlined in the attached Draft Model 
Agreement. 

 
CED Eligibility: 
 
The subject business must provide a post-probationary wage of at least 1.5 times the minimum wage for 90% of 
all employees and offer an employment benefits package including medical insurance to all employees. The 
current federal minimum wage is $7.25/hour. 

 
o DHCD’s Model Industry Agreement provides that this requirement is subject to negotiation with 

DHCD and is currently not included in the attached Draft Model Agreement outlining Wild Wolf 
Brewing Company’s industry commitment. Wild Wolf Brewing Company will comply with 
applicable Affordable Care Act employee medical insurance provisions. 

 
The subject business must employ low to moderate- income persons in at least 51 percent of the available 
positions, or, ensure that low- to moderate- income persons will receive first consideration for employment. 
 



o Wild Wolf Brewing Company has indicated in the attached Draft Model Agreement that they
anticipate the use of grant funds will enable the retention of forty-six (46) jobs and will enable
the creation of a minimum of five (5) new jobs in 2016 of which 51 % or 26 jobs will be made
available to LMI persons.

For all CED’ s an irrevocable Letter of Credit, bond, or other guaranteed form of security will be required in the 
amount of the CED grant. This security must remain in place until all program requirements are satisfactorily 
met. 

o Wild Wolf Brewery has secured the CDBG investment of $250,000 through the provision of a 
letter of credit that is held at Bank of the James, Lynchburg, Virginia and is subject to be called 
by DHCD for non-performance as defined in the final project Model Agreement.

CED Categories and Thresholds:  

The nature of the financial assistance available under the CED Fund varies depending on the economic strength 
of the applicant localities. CDBG-eligible localities, excluding Towns, are placed in one of three categories:  
Distressed, Transitional, and Competitive. 

Economic Strength: 

Nelson County is considered “Transitional” which means it has earned 2-4 points based on: an average 
unemployment rate of greater than the statewide figure of 5.5% but less than 8.25%, a Median 
Household Income of less than the statewide figure of $63,636, but greater than $44,545, and a Poverty 
Rate of greater than the statewide figure of 11.1% but less than 16.65%.  

o Nelson County’s 2013 Unemployment Rate per VEC is 5.2% - 0 points
o Nelson County’s 2012 Median HH Income per US Census Bureau estimates is $48,888 –

1 point
o Nelson County’s 2012 Poverty Rate per US Census Bureau estimates is 11.5% - 1 point
o Nelson County’s Total Points – 2

The following criteria applies to Transitional localities: The subject business must create at least 20 full-
time positions. The subject business must make a private investment of at least $300,000. The local government 
financial contribution must be at least 25% of CDBG eligible costs. CDBG funding shall not exceed $10,000 
per job created, or $25,000 per job in cases of local diversification. 

o Wild Wolf Brewing Company proposes to create 5 new jobs and retain 46 jobs, has made
a private investment of $450,000 in the business, the local government contribution of
$62,500 (25% of $250,000 in eligible CDBG costs) will be paid by the business. The
funding requested of $250,000 does not exceed $10,000 per job created.

Low to Moderate Income Benefit: 

Activities benefiting low- and moderate income (LMI) persons must meet one of the following tests: Benefits 
are available to all of the residents in a particular area, wherein at least 51 percent of the residents are LMI; at 
least 51 percent of the benefits are provided to LMI persons; benefits will be provided to a clientele presumed to 
be principally LMI persons; or, if jobs are created or retained in a project, at least 51 percent of the permanent, 
full time jobs (including permanent, full time equivalent jobs) will be held by or made available to LMI persons. 



CDBG eligibility in economic development projects is established by creating job opportunities for low- and 
moderate-income persons. There are two options for ensuring LMI benefit results from the job creation process.  
 

 Option 1 is to employ LMI persons in at least 51 percent of the available positions. Under this option, 
the locality or assisted business will retain documentation of the income status of employees.  
 

 Option 2 is to establish procedures to ensure that LMI persons will receive first consideration for 
employment. Under this option, the job qualifications must be limited to possession of a high school 
diploma or its equivalent. No special training should be required. A third party single point of contact 
for application screening, such as the Virginia Employment Commission, is typically utilized. This 
contact will maintain all LMI documentation. The employer must hire only those persons screened by 
this third party. At least 51 percent of the new jobs must be accessible to persons holding no more than a 
high school degree. Job creation must occur within two years of the date of completion of the private 
investment.  
 
Additionally, the documentation of job creation, including jobs to LMI persons, may not conclude until 
the completion of the CDBG-funded construction activity or the achievement of the total job creation 
and 51% LMI benefit, as agreed to in the executed Industry Agreement, whichever is later. Private 
Investment must occur within 2 years of the commencement date of the CDBG contact with the locality. 
The job creation requirement will be incorporated into a formal agreement. A business which fails to 
meet the job requirements will be subject to a non-performance penalty as outlined in this agreement. 

 
o Wild Wolf Brewing Company has indicated in the attached Draft Model Agreement that they 

will utilize Option 2 and the use of grant funds will enable the retention of forty-six (46) jobs 
and will enable the creation of a minimum of five (5) new jobs in 2016 of which 51 % or 26 jobs 
will be made available to LMI persons. 

 
Projects utilizing CDBG funds to install or improve water / wastewater services must make these services 
available to adjacent residential structures. Low- to Moderate income households must be connected to the new 
service. 
 
Low to Moderate Income Definition: 
 
Individuals or households whose household income is equal to or less than the Section 8 lower income limit 
established by HUD are determined to be low- and moderate-income. The Section 8 income limits are published 
annually by HUD. The income limit represents 80 percent of the area median income (AMI) for like-sized 
households or 80 percent of the median income of the entire non-metropolitan area of the State, whichever is 
higher. No project will receive funding which benefits moderate-income persons (80 percent AMI) to the 
exclusion of low-income persons (50 percent AMI or less) 
 
Low to Moderate Income is determined based upon the US Department of Housing and Urban Development’s 
(HUD) Section 8 Income Limits for both household and income size. Nelson County is part of the 
Charlottesville Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) and these limits for 2015 are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE: VIRGINIA    
Charlottesville, VA MSA 
FY 2015 MFI: 84100  
 

--------------- HUD   S E C T I O N   8   I N C O M E   L I M I T S----------------- 
  

1 PERSON   2 PERSON   3 PERSON   4 PERSON   5 PERSON   6 PERSON   7 PERSON    8 PERSON 

 
EXTR LOW INCOME   $17,700     $20,200   $22,750    $25,250     $28,410      $32,570    $36,730     $40,890 
VERY LOW INCOME   $29,450     $33,650     $37,850    $42,050    $45,450       $48,800    $52,150     $55,550 
LOW-INCOME            $46,100     $52,650     $59,250    $65,800    $71,100       $76,350    $81,600     $86,900 

 



         DRAFT































Revised Document Provided as Additional Information Requested  11/13/15  



Not Provided

Not Provided

Not Provided





CDBG Derivation of Cost

Product Total CDBG Non-CDBG Source of Estimate Date

EXAMPLE - Sewer Installation
Construction
9,000 LF of 8-inch sewer line @ $50/LF $450,000 $400,000 $50,000 PER 9/5/2014
5,000 LF of 2-inch force main @ $16/LF $80,000 $50,000 $30,000 PER 9/5/2014

4,175 LF of 6-inch service laterals @ $20/LF $83,500 $0 $83,500 PER 9/5/2014

Product Total CDBG Non-CDBG Source of Estimate Date

2200 LF 2.5" HDPE directional drilled @ 
$100/LF

 $                   220,000  $         220,000  $                 -   PER      

Coated manhole  $                       3,000  $             3,000  $                 -   PER      

      $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

      $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

     

 $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

      $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

      $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

      $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

      $                            -    $                   -    $                 -             

1




























































	Agenda December 8, 2015
	Evening III A (1) PUBLIC NOTICE - Tapager SUP
	Evening III A (2) Tapager SUP Staff Report

	Evening III B (1) Public Notice #2 2015 CIG Funds Wild Wolf
	Evening III B (3) VCDBG-Program-Design 2015 Public Participation
	Evening III B (4) Public Meeting #2 2015 CDBG Project Fact Sheet and CED Program & Project Information
	Evening III B (5) Wild Wolf Brewery Infrastructure Grant Application and Attachments
	DHCD Wild Wolf Application in CAMS
	mapshowing2461rockfishvalleyhwy84201535640
	DerivationofCosts12920151052584201535926812201522635 (1)
	WildWolfBreweryExtension84201540019
	NelsonCountyWildWolfBreweryTJPDC721201592021
	grantsupportletteryvettestafford852015122847
	CertificationandAssurances812201522909





